
Northern Inyo Hospital

July 15 2015 Regular Meeting
July 15 2015 Regular Meeting - July 15 2015 Regular Meeting

Agenda, July 15 2015 Regular Meeting

Agenda, July 15 2015 Regular Meeting

Consent Agenda

Minutes, 6-17-15 Regular Meeting
Minutes, June 30 2015 Special Meeting
Financial and Statistical Reports for May 2015
Minutes, July 2 2015 Special Meeting

CEO Report

Celtic Leasing Termination

Chief of Staff Report

Chief of Staff Report, 7/15/15 Regular Meeting

Performance Excellence Report

Performance Excellence Report

Purchase of Nuclear Medicine Radiopharmacy

Purchase of Nuclear Medicine Radiopharmacy

Inyo County First 5 Grant

Inyo County First 5 Grant

2015/2016 Fiscal Year Budget

2015/2016 Fiscal Year Budget

Milliman Actuarial Valuation as of 1/1/15

Milliman Actuarial Valuation at 1/1/15

Personnel Policy - Leaves of Absence, Leave Donation

Personnel Policy:  Leaves of Absence, Leave Donation

Personnel Policy:  Benefits - Tuition Reimbursement

Personnel Policy:  Benefits - Tuition Reimbursement

Personnel Policy:  Benefits - Paid Sick Leave

Personnel Policy:  Benefits - Paid Sick Leave

.....................................................................2

..............................................................................5
...................................................................10

......................................................11
......................................................................21

.......................................................................................22

.......................................................23

...............................................................................69

......................................................77

..........................................................................................87

................................................................................107

....................................................................110

.....................................132

.........................................134

......................................................136

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

http://www.tcpdf.org


                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
DRAFT AGENDA 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

July 15, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. 
In the Tallman Pavilion at the Tri-County Fairgrounds, Bishop, CA 

 
 
 

1. Call to Order (at 5:30 p.m.).          

2. At this time persons in the audience may speak on any items not on the agenda on any matter 

within the jurisdiction of the District Board.  (Members of the audience will have an opportunity to 

address the Board on every item on the agenda.  Speakers are limited to a maximum of two 

minutes each.) 

 ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

                                       Consent Agenda (action items) 
 

3. Approval of minutes of the June 17 2015 regular meeting  

4. Approval of minutes of the June 30 2015 special meeting 

5. Approval of minutes of the July 2 2015 special meeting 

6. Approval of financial and statistical reports for the month of May 2015 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

7. Chief Executive Officer’s Report; Victoria Alexander-Lane  (information items)  

A.  Telemedicine update     D. Celtic Leasing Termination 

B.  LAFCO update E. Strategic Plan Update 

C.  Physician Recruitment F. Management Training 

8. Chief of Staff Report; Mark Robinson, M.D. 

A. Medical Staff privileging and credentialing (action item): 

1. Appointment to the NIH Provisional Active Medical Staff of Emergency Medicine 

Physician Anne Goshgarian, M.D.  

B. Hospital wide Policy and Procedure approvals (action items): 

1. Fluoride Varnish Application 

2. Administration of Drugs:  Patient’s Own Medications 

3. Drug Shortages or Outages 

4. Medication Over-Ride Policy 

5. Single Dose vs. Multi-Dose Vial Policy 



Page, 2, Agenda, NICLHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, July 15, 2015 
 
 

6. Recall:  Drugs 

7. DI Mammography Infection Control Policy 

8. Admission of a Patient with a Communicable Disease 

9. Adult Immunization in the Healthcare Worker – Version 3 

10. Prevention and Treatment of Pertussis in Hospital Employees 

11. Prevention of Catheter Associated Urinary Tract Infections Guidelines 

12. Foley Removal Protocol 

C. 2014 Draft Antibiogram (action item)  

9. Chief Nursing Officer Report (information item). 

10.  Chief Performance Excellence Officer Report (information item). 

11.  Compensation During Leave of Absence presentation (information item). 

12.  Benefit Cost presentation (information item). 

      13.  New Business 

              A. Purchase of equipment for Nuclear Medicine radiopharmacy (action item). 

              B. Inyo County First 5 Grant approval (action item). 

              C. 2015-2016 Fiscal Year Budget (action item). 

              D. NIH Foundation Board Member approval, Mr. Ken Partridge (action item). 

              E. Approval of Milliman Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015 (action item). 

              F. Personnel Policy: Leaves of Absence – Leave Donation (action item). 

              G. Personnel Policy: Benefits – Tuition Reimbursement (action item). 

              H.  Personnel Policy:  Benefits – Paid Sick Leave (action item). 

              I. Modification to Agreement with High Sierra Imaging and Interventions (action item). 

              J. Green Committee Update (information item). 

     14.  Reports from Board members (information items). 

     15. Adjournment to closed session to/for: 

           A. Hear reports on the hospital quality assurance activities from the responsible department  

                head and the Medical Staff Executive Committee (Section 32155 of the Health and Safety  

                Code, and Section 54962 of the Government Code).  

            B.  Confer with Legal Counsel regarding pending and threatened litigation, existing litigation and  

                  significant exposure to litigation (pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9). 

            C.  Confer regarding action filed against Northern Inyo Healthcare District and other Defendants  

                  (Government Code Section 54956.9(a)). 

7/9/2015, 1:27 PM 



Page, 3, Agenda, NICLHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, July 15, 2015 
 
 
            D. Discussion of a personnel matter (Government Code Section 54957). 

     16.  Return to open session, and report of any action taken in closed session.   

     17.  Adjournment.     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require special accommodations to 
participate in a District Board meeting, please contact administration at (760) 873-2838 at least 48 hours 
prior to the meeting. 

7/9/2015, 1:27 PM 



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                      June 17, 2015 
Regular Meeting                   Page 1 of 5 
   
 
CALL TO ORDER 

 
The meeting was called to order at 5:45 pm by M.C. Hubbard, President. 
 

PRESENT M.C. Hubbard, President 
Denise Hayden, Vice President  
D. Scott Clark, M.D., Secretary 
Peter Watercott, Treasurer   
John Ungersma, M.D., Member at Large 

 
ALSO PRESENT 
 
 
 
OPPORTUNITY FOR 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 

 
Victoria Alexander-Lane, Chief Executive Officer 
Mark Robinson M.D., Chief of Staff 
Sandy Blumberg, Executive Assistant 
 
Ms. Hubbard stated at this time persons in the audience may speak on any 
items not on the agenda on any matter within the jurisdiction of the 
District Board.   The following persons spoke during public comment: 

- Laurie Archer, RN 
- Gloria Phillips, RN 
- Vickie Labraque, RN 
- Chris Whitcomb 
- Janie Robertson 
- (unidentified member of public) 
- Pam Mitchell 
- Eric Richman, O.D. 
- Ken Kilgore 
- John Atkins 
- Randy Short 
- Cheryl Moreau 
- Stacey Brown, M.D. 
- Robin Cassidy 
- Cindy Freeman 
- Todd Lembke 
- Maura Richman, RN 
- Sue Tonelli, RN 
- Lynne Greer 
- Cherie Labraque 
- Pam Spector, RN 
- Tami McDermith, RN 

At the request of a member of the public, Board members Watercott, 
Hayden, Hubbard, Clark, and Ungersma each provided a brief description 
of their Hospital District Board experience and their personal background. 
Ms. Hubbard also provided a brief overview of the personal leave that is 
currently allowed to Northern Inyo Hospital (NIH) employees. 
 
Ms. Hubbard then called attention to the Consent Agenda for this meeting 
which contained the following items: 
 



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                      June 17, 2015 
Regular Meeting                   Page 2 of 5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER’S REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- Approval of the minutes of the May 13 2015 regular meeting 
- Approval of the financial and statistical reports for the month of 

April 2015 
It was moved by Denise Hayden, seconded by D. Scott Clark, M.D. and 
unanimously passed to approve both Consent Agenda items as presented. 
 
Chief Executive Officer Victoria Alexander-Lane reported on the 
following: 

- The physician on-boarding process (for incoming practitioners) is 
being expanded and improved upon, and it now includes two 
weeks of Hospital orientation  

- Hospital Administration continues to work with the Inyo County 
Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) to look into the 
subject of encroachment of services within the Northern Inyo 
Healthcare District boundaries 

- A potential Chief Medical Officer (CMO) candidate will come for 
a visit the next week.  A brief description of the role of a CMO 
was also provided. 

- Hospital Administration is moving forward to pursue designating 
the NIH Rural Health Clinic (RHC) as a Medical Home.  RHC 
expansion continues and the Hospital also continues to recruit for 
family practice and internal medicine practitioners to join the 
Clinic team.  The Hospital’s women’s health and OB/Gyn 
practitioners will now also be part of the RHC. 

- Strategic planning for the Hospital’s Information Technology (IT) 
Department continues, and an IT Department open house will take 
place in the near future 

- The Hospital is currently working on improving processes for 
transitions in patient care, and is looking at concepts including 
patient navigators and care coordinators.  NIH also continues to 
increase its focus in the areas of population wellness and 
prevention  

- The Hospital continues to look into telemedicine services as a 
solution for meeting some of the unmet healthcare needs in this 
community 

- The NIH management team will soon participate in the 2nd phase 
of management training on The 7 Habits of Highly Effective 
People 

- The Hospital management team also continues work on review of 
internal process management, and on improving and updating 
existing hospital policies 

- NIH Community Relations staff is in high gear planning special 
events for hospital staff 

Ms. Alexander-Lane additionally asked if the Board is interested in 
holding the August regular meeting of the District Board at Cardinal 
Village Resort, which is located within the Hospital District boundaries.  
The response to that inquiry was favorable. 
 



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                      June 17, 2015 
Regular Meeting                   Page 3 of 5 
CHIEF OF STAFF 
REPORT 
 
MEDICAL STAFF 
CREDENTIALING, 
PRIVILEGING, AND 
ADVANCEMENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
POLICY AND 
PROCEDURES 
APPROVALS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CHIEF NURSING 
OFFICER REPORT 
 
 
 
PERFORMANCE 
EXCELLENCE REPORT 
 
 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
2015/2016 FISCAL YEAR 
BUDGET  
 
 
 
 
 

Chief of Staff Mark Robinson M.D. reported following careful review, 
consideration, and approval by the appropriate Committees the Medical 
Executive Committee recommends Board approval of the following: 

1. Advancement of Felix Karp, M.D. from Temporary Locums to 
Provisional Active Staff with clinical privileges as requested 

2. Advancement of Matthew Wise, M.D. from Provisional Active 
Staff to Active Staff with clinical privileges as requested 

3. Granting of Pelvic Radiology privileges as requested 
commensurate with current practice to Keith Shonnard, M.D. 

Dr. Robinson also reported that the Medical Executive Committee 
recommends acceptance of the Medical Staff resignations of Sudhir 
Kakarla, M.D. and Kristin Collins, D.O., per their requests.  He 
additionally noted that following careful review, consideration, and 
approval by the appropriate Committees, the Medical Executive 
Committee recommends Board approval of the following hospital wide 
policies and procedures: 

1. Endo Venous Laser Treatment 
2. Malignant Hyperthermia Cart Check 
3. Shoulder Arthroscopy 3 Point Distraction System 
4. Surgery Tissue/Bone Graft “Look Back” policy 
5. Bone Graft Tissue Bank 
6. Utilization Review Plan 
7. Organ/Tissue/Eye Donation 

Following review of the information provided it was moved by Peter 
Watercott, seconded by John Ungersma, M.D. and unanimously passed to 
approve all Medical Staff credentialing, privileging, advancements, and 
resignations; and all seven policies and procedures as presented. 
 
Chief Nursing Officer Kathy Decker R.N. provided a nursing department 
update which included stating that Interim Perinatal Unit Nurse Manager 
Jan Burke RN is now on board and is very pleased to be part of the 
Hospital team and its’ (phenomenal) staff. 
 
Chief Performance Excellence Officer Maria Sirois provided a monthly 
report which included the following: 

- Hospital compliance statistics and reports 
- An update on the progress of the Leap Frog Survey  
- Information on Hospital staff Performance Excellence Training 

(including Lean Six Sigma training) 
 
 
Chief of Fiscal Services Carrie Petersen called attention to a summary of 
submitted Hospital departmental budgets for the upcoming 2015/2016 
fiscal year, which at this time results in a bottom line initial deficit of 
$3,882,012.  Ms. Petersen stated that management’s goal in the next 
month will be to work diligently to get the budget to the right positive 
bottom line to meet our needs as an organization, including meeting the 
Bond Debt Service Coverage guidelines that require NIH to have 
sufficient income to cover outstanding debt. While work on the budget 



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                      June 17, 2015 
Regular Meeting                   Page 4 of 5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
401(A) PLAN 
AMENDMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
MAMMOGRAPHY 
UPGRADE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FLOOR WAXING 
PROPOSAL 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVAL OF 
APPROPRIATIONS 
LIMIT FOR THE 
2015/2016 FISCAL YEAR 
 
 
 
MICROSOFT 
LICENSING RENEWAL 
 
 
 
 
UPDATE TO 
EMPLOYEE DISCOUNT 
POLICY 
 
 
 

continues, Ms. Alexander-Lane recommends Board approval of the 
capital budget and depreciation items only at this time.  Following brief 
discussion it was moved by Mr. Watercott, seconded by Doctor 
Ungersma, and unanimously passed to approve the capital budget and 
depreciation portions of the 2016/2016 budget (only) at this time. 
 
Chief Human Relations Officer Georgan Stottlemyre called attention to an 
Amendment to the District 401(A) Retirement Plan which allows for 
revision of the timing requirements for funding of the employer 
contribution.  It was moved by Ms. Hayden, seconded by Doctor 
Ungersma, and unanimously passed to approve the Amendment to the 
District 401(A) Retirement Plan as presented. 
 
Ms. Alexander-Lane called attention to a request to upgrade the 
Hospital’s mammography machine to 3D Breast tomosynthesis in order to 
provide the highest quality of care available to citizens of the District.  It 
was noted that the upgrade will bring NIH’s ability to detect breast cancer 
to a state-of-the-art level which only exists at a small number of facilities 
in this country.  It was moved by Doctor Ungersma, seconded by Doctor 
Clark, and unanimously passed to approve the proposed mammography 
upgrade as presented. 
 
Environmental Services Manager Richard Miears called attention to a 
proposal for floor waxing services that resulted from an RFP (Request For 
Proposal) being advertised during the month of May.  It was moved by 
Ms. Hayden, seconded by Doctor Clark, and unanimously passed to 
approve a contract with Just Do Right Janitorial for floor waxing services 
at NIH, per the information provided by Mr. Miears. 
 
Chief of Fiscal Services Carrie Petersen called attention to a proposed 
Appropriations Limit for the fiscal year July 1 2015 thru June 30 2016, 
per calculations and data provided by the State of California Department 
of Finance.  It was moved by Doctor Ungersma, seconded by Ms. 
Hayden, and unanimously passed to approve an appropriations limit of 
$553,086.33 for the upcoming fiscal year as presented. 
 
Information Technology Technical Services Manager Devin Riley called 
attention to a request for renewal of the Hospital’s Microsoft Licensing 
Agreement which will expire in the month of July.  It was moved by Mr. 
Watercott, seconded by Ms. Hayden and unanimously passed to renew the 
Hospital’s Microsoft Licensing Agreement as requested. 
 
Chief of Fiscal Services Carrie Petersen called attention to a proposed 
update to the current NIH employee discount policy, which corrects the 
policy to reflect the current District discount of 25% for employees and 
the prompt pay discount of 20% available to all patients.  It was moved by 
Dr. Ungersma, seconded by Dr. Clark, and unanimously passed to 
approve the update to the medical expense discount policy as presented. 



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                      June 17, 2015 
Regular Meeting                   Page 5 of 5 
 
HOSPITALIST 
CONTRACT 
ADDENDUM, JOY 
ENGBLADE 
 
 
 
 
MICROSOFT TRUE UP 
COST 
 
 
 
 
 
BOARD MEMBER 
REPORTS 
 
ADJOURNMENT TO 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RETURN TO OPEN 
SESSION AND REPORT 
OF ACTION TAKEN 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 

 
Ms. Alexander-Lane called attention to a proposed addendum to the Chief 
Hospitalist Agreement with Joy Engblade, M.D. which would allow for a 
tuition reimbursement of up to $10,000 per year for continuing medical 
education as per common practice.  It was moved by Doctor Clark, 
seconded by Ms. Hayden, and unanimously passed to approve the 
proposed contract Addendum with Chief Hospitalist Joy Engblade M.D. 
as presented.  
 
Information Technology Technical Services Manager Devin Riley then 
called attention to a request to “true-up” the liability (expense) for the 
Hospital’s licensed Microsoft Software to correct the expense to actual.  It 
was moved by Doctor Ungersma, seconded by Mr. Watercott, and 
unanimously passed to approve the “true-up” adjustment to the cost of the 
Hospital’s licensed Microsoft Software as requested. 
 
Ms. Hubbard asked if any members of the Board of Directors wished to 
report on any items of interest.  No reports were heard. 
 
At 8:14 pm Ms. Hubbard announced the meeting would adjourn to closed 
session to allow the Board of Directors to/for: 

A.  Hear reports on the hospital quality assurance activities from the 
responsible department head and the Medical Staff Executive 
Committee (Section 32155 of the Health and Safety Code, and 
Section 54962 of the Government Code). 

B. Discussion of potential litigation (Government Code Section 
54956(d)(2)). 

C. Confer regarding action filed against Northern Inyo Healthcare 
District and other Defendants (Government Code Section 
54956.9(a)). 
 

At 9:00 pm the meeting returned to open session.  Ms. Hubbard reported 
the Board took no reportable action. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:01 pm. 

  
 

 
________________________________________ 
M.C. Hubbard, President 

 
 
 
    Attest:   ________________________________________ 
                  D. Scott Clark, M.D., Secretary 



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                          June 30, 2015 
Special Meeting                        Page 1 of 1 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 

 
 
The meeting was called to order at 5:30 pm by M.C. Hubbard, President. 
 
 

PRESENT 
 

M.C. Hubbard, President 
Denise Hayden, Vice President  
D. Scott Clark, M.D., Secretary 
Peter Watercott, Treasurer 
John Ungersma, M.D., Member at Large 

 
 
OPPORTUNITY FOR 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT TO 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
 
 
RETURN TO OPEN 
SESSION AND REPORT 
OF ACTION TAKEN 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
Ms. Hubbard stated that at this time persons in the audience may speak on 
items on the agenda for this meeting (speakers will be limited to a 
maximum of two minutes each).  Multiple comments were heard. 
 
 
At 6:15 pm Ms. Hubbard announced that the meeting would adjourn to 
closed session to allow the Board of Directors to: 
 

A. Complete the Annual CEO Performance Evaluation (Government 
Code Section 54957). 

 
 
At 8:05pm the meeting returned to open session.  Ms. Hubbard reported 
that the Board took no reportable action. 
 

 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:07 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

  
 

________________________________________ 
M.C. Hubbard, President 

 
    Attest:   ________________________________________ 
                  D. Scott Clark, M.D., Secretary 























Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                           July 2, 2015 
Special Meeting                       Page 1 of 1 
 
CALL TO ORDER The meeting was called to order at 12:14 pm by M.C. Hubbard, President. 

 
PRESENT 
 

M.C. Hubbard, President 
D. Scott Clark, M.D., Secretary 
Peter Watercott, Treasurer 
John Ungersma, M.D., Member at Large 

 
ABSENT 
 
ALSO PRESENT 
 
 
ALSO PRESENT FOR 
RELEVANT PORTIONS 
 
OPPORTUNITY FOR 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT TO 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
 
RETURN TO OPEN 
SESSION AND REPORT 
OF ACTION TAK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AMENDMENT TO THE 
AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN INYO LAFCO 
AND THE NIH 
HEALTHCARE 
DISTRICT 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Denise Hayden, Vice President 
 
Victoria Alexander-Lane, Chief Executive Officer 
Sandy Blumberg, Executive Assistant 
 
Margaret Kemp-Williams, Inyo County Legal Counsel 
Josh Hart, Inyo County Planning Commission 
 
Ms. Hubbard stated at this time persons in the audience may speak on 
items listed on the agenda for this meeting (speakers will be limited to a 
maximum of two minutes each).  No comments were heard. 
 
At 12:15 pm, Ms. Hubbard announced that the meeting would adjourn to 
closed session to allow the Board of Directors to: 

A. Conference with Legal Counsel regarding pending and threatened 
litigation, existing litigation, and significant exposure to litigation 
(pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9).  
 

At 1:05pm the meeting returned to open session.  Ms. Hubbard reported 
that the Board took no reportable action. 
 
John Ungersma, M.D. then moved that the Board of Northern Inyo 
Healthcare District participate with the Inyo County Local Agency 
Formation Commission (LAFCO) to bring legal action against Southern 
Mono Healthcare District concerning incursion into Northern Inyo 
Healthcare District boundaries.  The motion was seconded by Peter 
Watercott, and passed to approve by all four Board members present, with 
Director Hayden being absent from the vote. 

 
It was then moved by Peter Watercott, seconded by Doctor Ungersma, and 
passed by all Directors present to approve an Amendment of the June 17 
2015 Agreement between the Inyo Local Agency Formation Commission 
and Northern Inyo Healthcare District, for the reimbursement of litigation 
costs, with Director Hayden being absent from the vote. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 1:15 pm.  

  
 
___________________________________               Attest:  _________________________________ 
M.C. Hubbard, President                                                          D. Scott Clark, M.D., Secretary 



















































































































































































 

Offices in Principal Cities Worldwide 

650 California Street, 17th Floor 
San Francisco, CA 94108-2702 
USA 

Tel +1 415 403 1333 
Fax +1 415 403 1334 

milliman.com 

 

 

 
 June 16, 2015 
 
 
Ms. Victoria Alexander-Lane 
Chief Executive Officer 
Northern Inyo Hospital 
150 Pioneer Lane 
Bishop, California 93514-2599 
 
Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015 
 
Dear Ms. Alexander-Lane: 
 
Enclosed is our Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015.  The recommended contribution is 
$3,900,000.  This means the current monthly contribution rate of $360,000 should be decreased 
to $325,000, effective July 1, 2015. 
 
In this year’s valuation, we have lowered the salary scale assumption from 5.0% to 4.0% to reflect 
lower long-term inflation expectations.  In addition, we have changed the actuarial cost method 
from the projected unit credit method to the entry age normal cost method, for purposes of 
compliance with GASB Statements No. 67 and 68. 
 
If you have any questions or would like to review the report with me, please give me a call at 
(415) 394-3716. 
 
 Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 Rich Wright 
 
RAW:km 
enc. 
cc: Georgan Stottlemyre 
 Carrie Petersen 
n:\nih\corr\2015\nih2015v_e.docx 

 



  

 

Milliman Client Report 

Northern Inyo County 
Local Hospital District Retirement Plan 
 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015 

 

 

 

 
 

Prepared by: 
 
Richard A. Wright 
FSA, MAAA 
 
Milliman, Inc. 
650 California Street, 17th Floor 
San Francisco, California 94108 
Tel 415 403 1333 Fax 415 403 1334 
milliman.com 
 
June 16, 2015 

 
 



 

Offices in Principal Cities Worldwide 

650 California Street, 17th Floor 
San Francisco, CA 94108-2702 
USA 

Tel +1 415 403 1333 
Fax +1 415 403 1334 

milliman.com 

 

 
 June 16, 2015 
 
 
Northern Inyo Hospital 
150 Pioneer Lane 
Bishop, California 93514-2599 
 
Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015 
 
 
As part of our engagement with the Hospital, we have made an actuarial valuation of the Northern Inyo 
County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan for the plan year beginning January 1, 2015.  The 
purpose of this valuation is to determine the recommended contribution pursuant to the Hospital’s 
funding policy. 
 
In preparing this report, we have relied without audit on information (some oral and some in writing) 
provided by New York Life Insurance Company and the Hospital.  This information includes, but is not 
limited to, financial information, census data, and plan provisions.  We found this information to be 
reasonably consistent and comparable with information used for other purposes.  The valuation results 
depend on the integrity of this information.  If any of this information is inaccurate or incomplete the 
results may be different and the calculations may need to be revised. 
 
All costs, liabilities, rates of interest, and other factors for the Fund have been determined on the 
basis of actuarial assumptions and methods which are individually reasonable (taking into account 
the experience of the Plan and reasonable expectations); and which, in combination, offer our best 
estimate of anticipated experience affecting the Fund. 
 
This valuation report is only an estimate of the Plan’s financial condition as of a single date.  It can 
neither predict the Plan’s future condition nor guarantee future financial soundness.  Actuarial 
valuations do not affect the ultimate cost of Plan benefits, only the timing of Plan contributions.  
While the valuation is based on an array of individually reasonable assumptions, other assumption 
sets may also be reasonable and valuation results based on those assumptions would be different.  
No one set of assumptions is uniquely correct.  Determining results using alternative assumptions is 
outside the scope of our engagement.  
 
Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current measurements presented in 
this report due to such factors as the following: plan experience differing from that anticipated by the 
economic or demographic assumptions; changes in economic or demographic assumptions; 
increases or decreases expected as part of the natural operation of the methodology used for these 
measurements (such as the end of an amortization period or additional cost or contribution 
requirements based on the Fund's funded status); and changes in plan provisions or applicable law. 
Due to the limited scope of our assignment, we did not perform an analysis of the potential range of 



Northern Inyo Hospital 
June 16, 2015 
Page 2 

Milliman 

 

future measurements.  The Hospital has the final decision regarding the appropriateness of the 
assumptions and actuarial cost methods. 
 
The calculations reported herein have been made in accordance with the applicable provisions of the 
Internal Revenue Code.  The results of this valuation are applicable only for the current year and are 
intended to be used only by the plan sponsor for the specific purposes described herein. 
 
Milliman’s work is prepared solely for the internal business use of the Hospital.  To the extent that 
Milliman's work is not subject to disclosure under applicable public records laws, Milliman’s work may 
not be provided to third parties without Milliman's prior written consent.  Milliman does not intend to 
benefit or create a legal duty to any third party recipient of its work product.  Milliman’s consent to 
release its work product to any third party may be conditioned on the third party signing a Release, 
subject to the following exception(s): 
 

(a) The Hospital may provide a copy of Milliman’s work, in its entirety, to the Hospital's 
professional service advisors who are subject to a duty of confidentiality and who agree to not 
use Milliman’s work for any purpose other than to benefit the Hospital. 

 
(b) The Hospital may provide a copy of Milliman’s work, in its entirety, to other governmental 

entities, as required by law. 
 
No third party recipient of Milliman's work product should rely upon Milliman's work product. Such 
recipients should engage qualified professionals for advice appropriate to their own specific needs. 
 
The consultants who worked on this assignment are pension actuaries.  Milliman’s advice is not 
intended to be a substitute for qualified legal or accounting counsel.   
 
On the basis of the foregoing, we hereby certify that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this report 
is complete and accurate and has been prepared in accordance with generally accepted actuarial 
principles and practices which are consistent with the applicable Actuarial Standards of Practice of the 
American Academy of Actuaries.  The undersigned is a member of the American Academy of 
Actuaries and meets the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render 
the actuarial opinion contained herein. 
 
 Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 Richard A. Wright, FSA, MAAA 
 Consulting Actuary 
RAW:km 
n:\nih\corr\2015\nih2015v_e.docx 
 
 
 



 

Milliman 

Milliman Client Report 

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan  
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Section Page 
 

 I VALUATION SUMMARY 
  Introduction .......................................................................................................................... 1 
  Highlights ............................................................................................................................. 1 
  Results of Valuation ............................................................................................................ 2 
  Monthly Contributions ......................................................................................................... 3 
 
 II FINANCIAL EXHIBITS 
  Exhibit 1. Summary of Plan Assets ............................................................................ 4 
  Exhibit 2. Summary of Changes in Plan Assets ........................................................ 5 
  Exhibit 3. Historical Returns on Plan Assets ............................................................. 6 
  Exhibit 4. Present Value of Accumulated Plan Benefits ............................................ 7 
  Exhibit 5. Changes in Accumulated Plan Benefits .................................................... 8 
 
 III DETERMINATION OF CONTRIBUTION 
  Exhibit 6. Development of Normal Cost ..................................................................... 9 
  Exhibit 7. Actuarial Accrued Liability ........................................................................ 10 
  Exhibit 8. Full Funding Limitation ............................................................................. 11 
  Exhibit 9. Recommended Contribution .................................................................... 12 
 
 IV APPENDICES 
  Appendix A. Summary of Pension Plan ....................................................................... 13 
  Appendix B. Actuarial Cost Method and Assumptions ................................................. 14 
  Appendix C. Summary of Participant Data ................................................................... 15 
  Appendix D. Reconciliation of Participant Data ............................................................ 16 
  Appendix E. Glossary of Key Terms ............................................................................. 17 
 
 
 
 



 

Milliman 

Milliman Client Report SECTION I.  VALUATION SUMMARY 

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan 1 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015 

 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
This report sets forth the results of our valuation of the Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District 
Retirement Plan, as of January 1, 2015.  In Section II we furnish certain financial statements and 
actuarial exhibits of the Fund for the 2014 plan year.  Section III presents the determination of the 
contribution requirement for the 2015 plan year. 
 
A summary of the Plan is set forth in Appendix A, and the actuarial assumptions and cost method 
used in determining the costs and liabilities are described in Appendix B.  The membership data is 
shown in Appendix C. 
 
 
HIGHLIGHTS 
 
The Plan was closed to new entrants effective January 1, 2013. 
 
We have changed the actuarial cost method from the projected unit credit method to the entry age 
normal cost method, for purposes of compliance with GASB 67 and 68.  This change has been made 
retroactive back to the prior valuation date of January 1, 2014, and thus the prior year’s valuation 
results shown in this report reflect this method change, which resulted in an increase of $5,214,952 in 
the actuarial accrued liability as of January 1, 2014.  This change had no effect on the determination of 
the recommended contribution. 
  
For this year’s valuation, we have lowered the salary increase assumption from 5.0% to 4.0% to reflect 
lower long-term inflation expectations.  This assumption change resulted in a decrease of $1,677,930 
in the actuarial accrued liability as of January, 1, 2015 and a decrease of $72,000 in the amount of the 
recommended contribution for 2015. 
  
The entry age normal cost decreased from $2,603,182 in last year’s valuation to $2,153,703 this year, 
due primarily to the decrease in covered payroll and the above-mentioned assumption change.  The 
normal cost as a percentage of payroll decreased from 13.4% last year to 12.2%. 
 
The investment performance of the fund showed a return of 5.2% for 2014.  The average investment 
return over the last 20 years has been 6.4%. 
 
The Full Funding Limitation is a measure of the funded status of the plan as of the valuation date.  It 
is normally used to determine minimum required contributions and the maximum tax-deductible limit 
for taxable entities.  For the 2015 Plan Year, the Full Funding Limitation would limit contributions to 
the Plan to $19,807,023 for the year. 
 
The recommended contribution is based on a target funding level of 125% of the Accumulated Benefit 
Obligation (ABO).  The plan’s current funding level is 91.9% of ABO.  The deficit under 125% is being 
amortized over a 20-year period beginning on January 1, 2012.  The applicable amortization amount 
for the year is added to the current year’s ABO normal cost to determine the recommended 
contribution for the year. 
 
For the 2015 plan year, the recommended contribution is $3,900,000, or $325,000 per month if paid in 
12 monthly installments during the 7/1/2015-6/30/2016 fiscal year. 
 



 

Milliman 

Milliman Client Report SECTION I.  VALUATION SUMMARY 

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan 2 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015 

 
 

RESULTS OF VALUATION 
 
The following table summarizes the principal valuation results and compares them with the prior plan 
year. 
 

 January 1, 2015 January 1, 2014 
   
Number of Participants   
Active – Fully vested 142 145 
 – Partially vested 89 99 
 – Nonvested   29   44 
 – Total 260 288 
   
Part-time employees with accrued benefits 6 8 
Disabled employees with accrued benefits 1 1 
Terminated vested 58 53 
Retired     0     0 
Total participants  325  350 
   
   
Participant Payroll under NRA  $ 17,664,833  $ 19,429,331 
   
Actuarial Accrued Liability  $ 49,116,826  $ 53,757,951 
   
Funding Target – 125% of Accumulated 
Benefit Obligation (ABO) 

 
 $ 44,394,099 

 
 $ 45,957,220 

   
Actuarial Assets  $ 32,628,625  $ 35,906,226 
   
Normal Cost at Beginning of Year  $ 2,153,703  $ 2,603,182 
As a percentage of applicable payroll  12.2%  13.4% 
   
Full Funding Limitation  $ 19,807,023  $ 21,733,339 
   
Recommended Contribution  $ 3,900,000  $ 4,320,000 
As a percentage of applicable payroll  22.1%  22.2% 
   
Investment Return   
Current annual yield  5.2%  2.8% 
Average annual yield for last 5 years  5.0%  5.1% 



 

Milliman 

Milliman Client Report SECTION I.  VALUATION SUMMARY 

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan 3 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015 

 
 

MONTHLY CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
To satisfy the funding requirement for the 2015 plan year, we recommend the schedule of 
contributions shown below.  Contributions for a fiscal year (July 1 to June 30) are being applied to the 
plan year (January 1 to December 31) ending within the fiscal year. 
 

Approximate 
Date of Contribution 

Contributions for the 
2015 Plan Year 

  
07/15/2015  $ 325,000 
08/15/2015   325,000 
09/15/2015   325,000 
10/15/2015   325,000 
11/15/2015   325,000 
12/15/2015   325,000 
01/15/2016   325,000 
02/15/2016   325,000 
03/15/2016   325,000 
04/15/2016   325,000 
05/15/2016   325,000 
06/15/2016   325,000 

  
Total  $ 3,900,000 

 
 
 



 

Milliman 

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan 4 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015 

 
 

Milliman Client Report SECTION II.  FINANCIAL EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT 1.  SUMMARY OF PLAN ASSETS 
 
 
The valuation assets as of January 1, 2015, are the sum of the accrued balances in the contractual 
Fixed Dollar Account (GA-928) and the Indexed Bond Fund (account #11344) as of December 31, 
2014, maintained by New York Life, plus any accrued but unpaid contributions and minus any 
distributions payable.  The balance in the contractual Pension Account is allocated to retired 
participants and beneficiaries and is excluded from the valuation.  Development of the assets is as 
follows: 
 

 January 1, 2015  January 1, 2014 
    
Plan Assets    
Fixed Dollar Account (GA-928)  $ 19,938,730   $ 23,872,677 
Indexed Bond Fund (Acc. #11344)   10,529,895    9,957,549 
Total  $ 30,468,625   $ 33,830,226 
    
Accrued Contributions   2,160,000    2,076,000 
    
Actuarial Assets  $ 32,628,625   $ 35,906,226 
    
Asset Allocation    
Fixed Dollar Account  61.1%   66.5% 
Indexed Bond Fund  32.3%   27.7% 
Accrued Contributions      6.6%       5.8% 
    
Total  100.0%   100.0% 

 
Note: We have not audited the fund's assets shown above.  We have relied on the information furnished 
by New York Life Insurance Company. 

 
 



 

Milliman 

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan 5 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015 

 
 

Milliman Client Report SECTION II.  FINANCIAL EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT 2.  SUMMARY OF CHANGES IN PLAN ASSETS 
 
 
Plan assets increase or decrease each year due to employer contributions, investment income, 
benefit payments to retiring participants, plan expenses paid by the trust fund, and any realized and 
unrealized gains and losses from investments. 
 

 PLAN YEAR ENDING 
 December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013 
   
Beginning Balance  $ 33,830,226  $ 35,494,273 
   
Additions:   
Employer contributions   4,236,000   4,344,000 
Investment income   1,774,807   1,000,205 
Experience adjustment   0   0 
Total   6,010,807   5,344,205 
   
Subtractions:   
Benefit payments   (9,172,910)   (6,625,553) 
Expenses & related charges   (50,304)   (48,022) 
Experience adjustment   (149,194)   (334,677) 
Total   (9,372,408)   (7,008,252) 
   
Ending Balance  $ 30,468,625  $ 33,830,226 

 
 



 

Milliman 

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan 6 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015 

 
 

Milliman Client Report SECTION II.  FINANCIAL EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT 3.  HISTORICAL RETURNS ON PLAN ASSETS 
 
 
The following table shows the historical return on plan assets since 1995: 
 

Plan Year Return 
  

2014 5.21% 
2013 2.82% 
2012 4.93% 
2011 5.94% 
2010 5.88% 

  
2009 5.97% 
2008 6.53% 
2007 6.71% 
2006 5.57% 
2005 5.32% 

  
2004 5.84% 
2003 5.41% 
2002 8.18% 
2001 7.33% 
2000 8.48% 

  
1999 4.42% 
1998 7.90% 
1997 8.64% 
1996 5.70% 
1995 12.16% 

   
Average for last 5 years 4.95% 
Average for last 10 years 5.48% 
Average for last 20 years 6.43% 

 
 
The actuarial valuation rate for the 2015 plan year is 6.25%. 
 
 



 

Milliman 

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan 7 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015 

 
 

Milliman Client Report SECTION II.  FINANCIAL EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT 4.  PRESENT VALUE OF ACCUMULATED PLAN BENEFITS (ABO) 
 
 
The present value of accumulated plan benefits (also known as the Accumulated Benefit Obligation 
or ABO) is the value of benefits that have been accrued to date. 
 

 
As of 

January 1, 2015  
As of 

January 1, 2014 
    
Vested Benefits    
Active participants  $ 29,437,819   $ 31,849,900 
Part-time participants with accrued benefits   335,859    521,558 
Terminated vested participants   4,435,196    2,917,368 
Disabled participants   24,511    22,453 
Participants currently receiving payments   0    0 
Total  $ 34,233,385   $ 35,311,279 
    
Nonvested Benefits   1,281,894    1,454,497 
    
Total  $ 35,515,279   $ 36,765,776 
    
Valuation Assets  $ 32,628,625   $ 35,906,226 
    
Funding Ratio  91.9%   97.7% 

 
 
 



 

Milliman 

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan 8 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015 

 
 

Milliman Client Report SECTION II.  FINANCIAL EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT 5.  CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED PLAN BENEFITS 
 
 
The changes in the present value of accumulated plan benefits for the last two plan years are 
summarized below. 
 

 PLAN YEAR ENDING 
 December 31, 2014  December 31, 2013 
    
Beginning of Year  $ 36,765,776   $ 35,334,265 
    
Benefits accumulated and actuarial experience   5,624,552    4,321,273 
    
Increase for interest due to the decrease in 
the discount period 

 
  2,297,861  

 
  2,385,063 

    
Plan amendment   0    0 
    
Change in actuarial assumptions   0    1,350,728 
    
Benefits paid   (9,172,910)    (6,625,553) 
    
End of Year  $ 35,515,279   $ 36,765,776 

 
 
 



 

Milliman 

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan 9 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015 

 
 

Milliman Client Report SECTION III.  DETERMINATION OF CONTRIBUTION 

EXHIBIT 6.  DEVELOPMENT OF NORMAL COST 
 
 
The normal cost is calculated according to the actuarial cost method.  Under the entry age normal 
cost method, the normal cost is calculated as the sum of the normal costs for individual participants. 
A participant’s normal cost is calculated by allocating the value of future benefits as a level 
percentage of earnings over the participant’s working lifetime.  The normal cost is as follows: 
 

 PLAN YEAR BEGINNING 
 January 1, 2015  January 1, 2014 
    
Normal cost as of beginning of plan year  $ 2,153,703   $ 2,603,182  
    
Estimated payroll for plan participants   17,664,833    19,429,331 
    
Normal Cost as % of payroll  12.2%   13.4% 
    
Normal cost as of end of plan year   2,288,309    2,765,881 

 
 



 

Milliman 

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan 10 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015 

 
 

Milliman Client Report SECTION III.  DETERMINATION OF CONTRIBUTION 

EXHIBIT 7.  ACTUARIAL ACCRUED LIABILITY 
 
 
The actuarial accrued liability has been calculated using the entry age normal actuarial cost method, 
and is equal to the present value of benefits for all members less the present value of future normal 
costs for active employees.  Any actuarial liability in excess of the plan’s assets is called an unfunded 
actuarial accrued liability. 
 

 
As of 

January 1, 2015  
As of 

January 1, 2014 
    
Present Value of Benefits    
Active participants  $ 60,203,823   $ 71,160,602 
Part-time participants with accrued benefits   335,859    521,558 
Terminated vested participants   4,435,196    2,917,368 
Disabled participants   24,511    22,453 
Participants currently receiving payments   0    0 
Total PVB  $ 64,999,389   $ 74,621,981 
    
Present Value of Future Normal Cost    
Active employees  $ 15,882,563   $ 20,864,030 
    
Actuarial Accrued Liability    
Active participants   44,321,260    50,296,572 
Part-time participants with accrued benefits   335,859    521,558 
Terminated vested participants   4,435,196    2,917,368 
Disabled participants   24,511    22,453 
Participants currently receiving payments   0    0 
Total actuarial accrued liability  $ 49,116,826   $ 53,757,951 
    
Actuarial Assets  $ 32,628,625   $ 35,906,226 
    
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability  $ 16,488,201   $ 17,851,725 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Milliman 

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan 11 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015 

 
 

Milliman Client Report SECTION III.  DETERMINATION OF CONTRIBUTION 

EXHIBIT 8.  FULL FUNDING LIMITATION 
 
 
The full funding limitation is defined by the Internal Revenue Code and limits minimum required and 
maximum deductible contributions of well-funded retirement plans. 
 

 PLAN YEAR ENDING 
 December 31, 2015  December 31, 2014 
    
Actuarial Accrued Liability  $ 49,116,826   $ 53,757,951 
Normal Cost   2,153,703    2,603,182 
Total  $ 51,270,529   $ 56,361,133 
    
Actuarial assets  $ 32,628,625   $ 35,906,226 
    
Full Funding Limitation, beginning of year  $ 18,641,904   $ 20,454,907 
Interest   1,165,119    1,278,432 
Full Funding Limitation, end of year  $ 19,807,023   $ 21,733,339 

  
 



 

Milliman 

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan 12 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015 

 
 

Milliman Client Report SECTION III.  DETERMINATION OF CONTRIBUTION 

EXHIBIT 9.  RECOMMENDED CONTRIBUTION 
 
 
The recommended contribution targets a funding level of 125% of the Accumulated Benefit 
Obligation (ABO).  Since the plan is currently funded less than 125% of ABO, the deficit is amortized 
over a 20 year period starting from January 1, 2012 (i.e. 17 years remaining as of January 1, 2015). 
The recommended contribution is reduced, if necessary, to the Full Funding Limitation. 
 

 PLAN YEAR ENDING 
 December 31, 2015  December 31, 2014 
    
Target Surplus    
Accumulated Benefit Obligation (ABO)  $ 35,515,279   $ 36,765,776 
Funding Target %   x 125%    x 125% 
Funding Target (125% of ABO)  $ 44,394,099   $ 45,957,220 
Actuarial Assets   32,628,625    35,906,226 
Excess / (deficit)  $ (11,765,474)   $ (10,050,994) 
    
Recommended Contribution    
ABO Normal Cost  $ 2,589,355   $ 3,170,902 
Amortization of (Excess) / Deficit   1,075,982    890,144 
Total as of beginning of year  $ 3,665,337   $ 4,061,046 
Interest   229,084    253,815 
Total as of end of year  $ 3,894,421   $ 4,314,861 
    
Full Funding Limitation, end of year  $ 19,807,023   $ 21,733,339 
    
Recommended Contribution  $ 3,894,421   $ 4,314,861 

 
 
 
 



 

Milliman 

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan 13 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015 

 
 

Milliman Client Report SECTION IV.  APPENDICES 

APPENDIX A.  SUMMARY OF PENSION PLAN 
 
 
The following paragraphs are only a brief summary of the more important provisions of the plan. In 
the event there are any inconsistencies between statements contained in this Appendix and the plan 
document, the provisions of the plan document shall control. 
 

Effective Date: March 1, 1975; last restatement January 1, 2009; amended January 1, 2008; and 
amended January 1, 2013. 
 

Plan Eligibility: An employee becomes a participant of the plan on the earliest January 1 or July 1 
following the later of attainment of age 21 and completion of 1 year of service.  The Plan was closed 
to new entrants effective January 1, 2013. 
 

Vesting: 50% vesting after 5 years of Credited Service increasing 10% per year until 100% vested 
after 10 years of service.  Active participants automatically become 100% vested upon attainment of 
normal retirement age or if they become totally and permanently disabled. 
 

Normal Retirement Date: The first day of the month coinciding with or following the later of 
Participant’s attainment of age 65 or completion of 5 years of plan participation.  However, the 
Normal Retirement Date shall not be later than age 70. 
 

Normal Retirement Benefit: 2.50% of Average Annual Compensation multiplied by years of 
Credited Service, but not less than $600. 
 

Average Annual Compensation: Average of annual compensation for the highest consecutive 36-
month period preceding the determination date. Compensation includes wages, shift differential, 
standby pay, and 50% of the value of any unused and unpaid sick leave existing at the time of 
termination of employment, and accrued after April 26, 1997. 
 

Accrued Benefit: Normal Retirement Benefit prorated on credited service. 
 

Normal Form of Retirement Benefit: Life Annuity. 
 

Early Retirement: The first day of the month coinciding with or following the Participant’s attainment 
of age 55 and completion of at least 5 years of credited service.  Then the normal retirement benefit 
will be reduced by 5/9% for each of the first 60 months and 5/18% for each additional month that 
payment starts before normal retirement age. 
 

Pre-Retirement Death Benefit: If a vested participant dies prior to retirement, his or her beneficiary 
will receive the actuarially determined present value of his or her accrued benefit. 
 
 



 

Milliman 

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan 14 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015 

 
 

Milliman Client Report SECTION IV.  APPENDICES 

APPENDIX B.  ACTUARIAL COST METHOD AND ASSUMPTIONS 
 
 
The following cost method and assumptions were used in valuing the benefits of all participants. 
 

 January 1, 2015  January 1, 2014 
    
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal Cost Method  Entry Age Normal Cost Method 
    
Funding Interest Rate     
 Pre-retirement 6.25%  6.25% 
 Post-retirement Based on Date of Participation 

DOP Before 7/1/2009:  8.00% 
DOP On/After  7/1/2009:  6.50% 

 Based on Date of Participation 
DOP Before 7/1/2009:  8.00% 
DOP On/After  7/1/2009:  6.50% 

    
Salary Scale 4.00%  5.00% 
    
Administrative Expenses None.  None. 
    
Mortality Based on Date of Participation 

DOP Before 7/1/2009: 1984 UP 
Mortality Table set back 4 years. 
 
DOP On/After 7/1/2009: RP-2000 
Table for Males set back 4 years. 

 Based on Date of Participation 
DOP Before 7/1/2009: 1984 UP 
Mortality Table set back 4 years. 
 
DOP On/After 7/1/2009: RP-2000 
Table for Males set back 4 years. 

    
Disability    
 Disablement Rate None.  None. 
 Disabled Annuitants Mortality None.  None. 
    
Withdrawal Rates Table T-8, The Actuary’s Pension 

Handbook, Crocker-Sarason-
Straight. 

 Table T-8, The Actuary’s Pension 
Handbook, Crocker-Sarason-
Straight. 

    
Retirement Age The later of age 65 or the 5th 

anniversary of date of participation; 
or age 70, if earlier. 

 The later of age 65 or the 5th 
anniversary of date of participation; 
or age 70, if earlier. 

    
Asset Valuation Method Market value  Market value 

 
 



 

Milliman 

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan 15 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015 

 
 

Milliman Client Report SECTION IV.  APPENDICES 

APPENDIX C.  SUMMARY OF PARTICIPANT DATA 
 
 
Active Participants 

  NUMBER OF PARTICIPANTS  ANNUAL SALARIES 
Age  Males Females Total  Males Females Total 

Under 25   0  0  0   $ 0  $ 0  $    0 
25 - 29   3  7  10    166,993   311,240   478,233 
30 - 34   6  17  23    416,755   928,693   1,345,448 
35 - 39   8  21  29    804,721   1,250,815   2,055,536 
40 - 44   6  13  19    411,726   771,577   1,183,303 
45 - 49   7  13  20    514,977   967,494   1,482,471 
50 - 54   13  33  46    1,104,612   2,216,338   3,320,950 
55 - 59   6  47  53    532,385   3,328,081   3,860,466 
60 - 64   7  45  52    449,585   3,149,138   3,598,723 
65 - 69   2  6  8    313,728   367,455   681,183 

70 & Over        0       0       0    0   0      0 

Total   58  202  260   $ 4,715,482  $ 13,290,831  $ 18,006,313 
 
 
Other Participants 

  NUMBER OF PARTICIPANTS  ANNUAL BENEFITS 
Participant Status  Males Females Total  Males Females Total 

Part-time   0  6     6   $ 0  $ 56,064  $ 56,064 
Disabled   0  1     1    0   2,741   2,741 
Terminated Vested   11  47    58    217,034   462,726   679,760 
Retired     0    0    0    0   0      0 

Total   11  54  65   $ 217,034  $ 521,531  $ 738,565 
 



 

Milliman 

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan 16 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015 

 
 

Milliman Client Report SECTION IV.  APPENDICES 

APPENDIX D.  RECONCILIATION OF PARTICIPANT DATA 
 
 

   TERM   
 ACTIVES PART-TIME VESTEDS DISABLEDS TOTAL 
       
As of 1/1/2014 288 8  53 1 350 
       
New entrants 1*     1 
       
Rehired/Return to 
active 7 (3)    4 
       
Move to part-time (2) 2     
       
Non-vested 
withdrawals (4) (1)    (5) 
       
Vested withdrawals (12)   12   
       
Disability       
       
Deaths       
       
Annuity purchases (9)   (1)  (10) 
       
Lump sum payouts (9)   (6)  (15) 
       
Other      (0) 
       
As of 1/1/2015 260 6  58 1 325 

 
 
 * Adjustment for 1 individual who previously worked as a temp who was added to the Plan with a date of participation 

prior to January 1, 2013. 
 
 



 

Milliman 

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan 17 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015 

 
 

Milliman Client Report SECTION IV.  APPENDICES 

APPENDIX E.  GLOSSARY OF KEY TERMS 
 
 
Actuarial Accrued Liability.  The Present Value of Future Benefits allocated to past service in 
accordance with the actuarial cost method. 
 
Accumulated Benefit Obligation (ABO).  The present value of benefits accrued as of the valuation 
date.  The ABO includes both vested and nonvested benefits, but does not include the cost of 
additional service or compensation increases after the valuation date.  
 
Actuarial Cost Method.  A method of allocating the present value of benefits to past and future 
periods.  Actuarial cost methods generally take into consideration the effect of wage inflation. 
 
Actuarial Gains and Losses.  Changes to the funded status due to deviations from the actuarial 
assumptions.  The deviations may result from gains and losses from investments, employee 
turnover, disability, retirement, mortality, and administrative expenses. 
 
Funded Status.  A comparison of the plan assets against liabilities for future benefits.  The funded 
status will differ depending on which benefit liability is being compared.  For example, the actuarial 
accrued liability can include the value of future compensation increases, but the present value of 
accumulated benefits does not.  The funded status is also dependent on the interest rate used to 
discount future benefits back to the present. 
 
Funding Target.  For this plan, the funding target has been set by the plan sponsor to be equal to 
125% of the Accumulated Benefit Obligation (ABO). 
 
Normal Cost.  The value of benefits earned for one year of service.  The value of benefits earned 
for one year of service.  The normal cost is calculated in accordance with the actuarial cost method. 
The accumulation of all normal costs assigned to past service equals the Actuarial Accrued Liability. 
The ABO normal cost is the increase in the ABO due to one additional year of service and one 
additional year of compensation increases. 
 
Present Value of Accumulated Benefits.  This is the same as the ABO.  This includes both vested 
and nonvested benefits, but does not include the cost of additional service or compensation 
increases after the valuation date. 
 
Present Value of Future Benefits.  The sum of all benefits expected to be paid in the future by the 
plan, with the payments discounted to the present using the valuation interest rate.  This includes 
benefits to be earned in the future for current employees. 
 
Present Value of Future Normal Cost.  The sum of all future normal costs expected for current 
employees, with the costs discounted back to the present using the valuation interest rate. 
 
Vested Benefits.  These include benefits to which a plan participant has earned a nonforfeitable 
right as a result of having satisfied the applicable service requirement(s) for such benefits under the 
plan, which include normal retirement benefits, early retirement benefits, and the pre-retirement 
spouse’s survivor annuity. 
 
 



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK – PERSONNEL POLICY 

 
Title: Leaves of Absence - LEAVE DONATION 
Scope: Hospital Wide Department: Human resources – 

Employee Handbook
Source: Human Resources Effective Date: 
 
 
POLICY: 
 
It is the policy of Northern Inyo Hospital (NIH) to allow employees to donate/transfer 
their paid leave (PDLV) or paid time off (PTO) (hereinafter “leave”) to another employee 
who is experiencing a family emergency or personal crisis that creates a need for 
additional time off beyond that individual’s available leave. Such donations are strictly 
voluntary, may occur during the first 16 weeks of a Northern Inyo Hospital (NIH) Job 
Protected Leave (JPL), and require the Administrator’s approval. 
 
 
PROCEDURES: 
 
To be eligible to donate leave, you must have been employed with NIH for at least one 
year preceding the leave donation. 
 
If you wish to donate leave, you must complete a “PTO or Paid Leave Transfer” form 
and provide it to the Administrator for approval. 
 
The minimum donation is 8.00 hours and the maximum donation is 40.00 hours in one 
pay period, as long as you retain a minimum of 40.00 hours in your own PTO account. 
 
Donated/transferred hours may be from an employee at the same or a higher rate of pay 
to an employee at the same or lower rate of pay on an hour for hour basis. Otherwise, 
only the equivalent value of hours may be donated. (Example 1. If donating employee 
makes $10/hour and receiving employee makes $5/hour, if all other requirements are met, 
donating employee may donate/transfer 40.00 hourswill be converted to dollars at time of 
transfer in the following manner. Example 1. If the donating employee makes $10/hour 
and the receiving employee makes $5/hour, if all requirements are met, the donating 
employee may donate/transfer 40 hours x $10 = $400 / $5 = 80 hours to the receiving 
employee. Example 2. If donating employee makes $5/hour and the receiving employee 
makes $10/hour, if all requirements are met, donating employee may donate/transfer 
40.00 hours x $5 = $200 / $10 = 20.00 hours to the receiving employee. In this either 
case, the hours will be rounded down to the nearest whole hour.) 
 
Donated/transferred hours will not be returned to you. 
 
You may only donate whole hours (i.e. 20.0 not 20.25). 
 
You cannot borrow against future leave to donate. If you are currently on leave, you 
cannot donate leave. 



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK – PERSONNEL POLICY 

 
Title: Leaves of Absence - LEAVE DONATION 
Scope: Hospital Wide Department: Human resources – 

Employee Handbook
Source: Human Resources Effective Date: 
 
 
You may donate/transfer leave to another employee during their first 16 weeks of a 
Northern Inyo Hospital (NIH) Job Protected Leave (JPL). 
 
Additional Information 
 
Employees on extended leave, past their first 16 weeks of an NIH JPL, may no longer 
receive PTO donations/transfers. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approval Date 
Board of Directors 07/15/2015 
 



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK – PERSONNEL POLICY 

 
Title: Benefits - TUITION REIMBURSEMENT 
Scope: Hospital Wide Department: Human Resources - Employee 

Handbook 
Source: Chief Human Relations Officer Effective Date:  01/14/2015 
 
PURPOSE: 
 
To encourage employees to pursue higher education. 
 
POLICY: 
 
It is the policy of Northern Inyo Hospital to provide reimbursement to full time regular 
employees for job-related education and development activities. 
 
Reimbursement is for course fees and textbooks for education and development obtained 
from university courses and technical college courses for requests that have been pre-
approved by Senior Management. 
 
PROCEDURE: 

Eligibility requirements 

1. Employee must have successfully completed their introductory period. 
2. Employee’s performance must be at least satisfactory, meeting all expectations 

and not be in the progressive disciplinary process. 
3. The paperwork must be submitted to Senior Management for approval prior to the 

start of the course. 
4. The course must be directly related to the employee's position and be job-related. 
5. The course must be through an accredited educational institution (university, 

technical college, or extension facility). 
6. A passing grade of "C" or better, or a completion certificate, is required prior to 

reimbursement. 

Reimbursement Criteria 

1. Pre-approved university courses or technical college courses and associated 
textbooks are covered at a maximum of $1,000 per fiscal year. Courses applicable 
to potential future assignment may be approved at a lesser amount. 

2. It is not the intent of this program to underwrite the pursuit of a technical school 
or college degree; however, if certain courses in the degree curriculum meet the 
above guidelines, they may be submitted for consideration. 

3. Termination of employment (actual date of termination) for any reason prior to 
the completion of the class(es) and submittal of the letter grade completion 
certificate will make the employee ineligible for this reimbursement. 



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK – PERSONNEL POLICY 

 
Title: Benefits - TUITION REIMBURSEMENT 
Scope: Hospital Wide Department: Human Resources - Employee 

Handbook 
Source: Chief Human Relations Officer Effective Date:  01/14/2015 
 
Approval Procedure 

1. Prior to enrollment, employees will need to complete the appropriate form, give it 
to their supervisor for approval, then their supervisor will send the form to Senior 
Management for consideration. The employee will be notified by Human 
Relations whether the request is approved or denied. Pre-approval from Senior 
Management is required for reimbursement. 

2. If the request is approved, the employee will receive two copies of the approved 
form. When the course is completed, the employee will send one copy along with 
their class grade or completion certificate and a verified statement of tuition costs 
or adequate receipts to Human Relations for reimbursement of up to the 
maximum amount defined under Reimbursement Criteria. 

3. Initial approval of a course of study does not obligate Northern Inyo Hospital to 
approve future courses in that course of study. Approvals are only valid for the 
specific course and quarter/semester requested. Payment of courses at a higher 
institution rate does not obligate Northern Inyo Hospital to continue payment at 
that higher rate. 

Additional Information 
1. Employees may not apply for the tuition reimbursement for courses previously 

taken, or courses currently in progress. Pre-approval of Senior Management is 
required. 

2. Unless directed and approved by Northern Inyo Hospital, an employee’s regular 
work schedule will not be altered to allow time off the job for participation in 
courses. Employee’s time to participate in courses is not paid time unless 
approved PTO is used. 

3. It is expected that employees who use this program will select courses locally if 
available and then pursue courses at a reasonable cost so that the most education 
and credits can be obtained for the reimbursement dollars provided. 

4. Employees applying for any other educational assistance through any sources 
such as Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) need to be aware that 
there may be notification requirements and/or tax considerations. It is advisable to 
consult your educational assistance program and a tax professional for such 
information. 

FORMS: 
TUITION ASSISTANCE REQUEST FORM 
Approval Date 
Board of Directors 01/14/2015; 07/15/2015 
Developed: 09/2014 
Revised: 07/15/2015 
Reviewed:  



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK – PERSONNEL POLICY 

 
Title: Benefits - PAID SICK LEAVE 
Scope: Hospital Wide Department: Human Resources - Employee 

Handbook 
Source: Chief Human Relations Officer Effective Date: 07/01/2015 
 
PURPOSE: 
 
To comply with State of California Healthy Workplaces/Healthy Families Act of 2014. 
 

POLICY: 
 
Beginning July 1, 2015, NIH provides paid sick leave to employees who have worked 30 
or more days in California within a year of their employment with the company or at the 
time this policy becomes effective. 

An employee who becomes ineligible for PTO due to a change in status or is otherwise 
ineligible for PTO will accrue paid sick leave at the rate of one hour for every 30 hours 
worked up to a maximum of 24 hours each 12-month period; provided , however , that 
the maximum accrual shall not exceed 48 hours at any one time.  

An employee who becomes eligible for PTO shall stop accruing paid sick leave when the 
employee 's PTO accrual exceeds 24 hours and thereafter may not use any accrued, but 
unpaid sick leave; provided, however, that the employee will commence accruing paid 
sick leave and may use such sick leave upon the employee thereafter becoming ineligible 
for PTO. 

Subject to the above restrictions on the use of paid sick leave, an employee ineligible for 
PTO who has not been separated from employment with NIH for more than one year may 
use any previously accrued, but unpaid sick leave. 

 

PROCEDURE: 

Eligibility 

All employees who have worked 30 or more days in California within a year of their 
employment with NIH or at the time this policy becomes effective. 

Procedures 

Eligible employees will accrue one hour of sick time for every 30 hours worked up to a 
maximum accrual of 48 hours or six days, whichever is greater, per calendar year. 

After successfully completing 90 days of employment, eligible employees may begin to 
use paid sick time under this policy in increments of two hours, up to a maximum of 24 
hours, or three days, whichever is greater, per calendar year.  

Accrued, unused time under this policy will carry over each year up to a maximum 
accrual of 48 hours or six days, whichever is greater. 

An employee may use paid sick leave under this policy for an unexpected personal 
business/emergency. Additionally, in accordance with California law, an employee may 
use PTO in increments of not less than two hours for any purpose as provided under the 



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK – PERSONNEL POLICY 

 
Title: Benefits - PAID SICK LEAVE 
Scope: Hospital Wide Department: Human Resources - Employee 

Handbook 
Source: Chief Human Relations Officer Effective Date: 07/01/2015 
 
California Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 2014, including (i) diagnosis, 
care, or treatment of any existing health condition of, or preventive care for, the 
employee or an employee's family member (child-regardless of age, parent (including 
step-parent and parent-in-law), spouse, registered domestic partner, grandparent, 
grandchild or sibling); (ii) for an employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking, for the purposes set forth in Labor Code Section 230.1 (medical 
attention, services from a domestic violence shelter, psychological counseling, safety 
planning).  

The hospital requires employees to use paid sick leave under this policy in minimum 
increments of two hours.  

Employees requesting time off under this policy should provide as much advanced notice 
to their direct manager as practicable, and employees who take more than three days of 
leave will be required to provide appropriate documentation to their direct manager in 
support of the leave taken. 

Unused sick leave shall not be paid upon termination, resignation, retirement, or other 
separation of employment. However, employees who are re-employed with the company 
within a year of separation will have their accrued unused bank of time off under this 
policy made available to them.  

Leave under this policy may run concurrently with leave taken under other applicable 
policies as well as under local, state or federal law, including leave taken pursuant to the 
California Family Rights Act (CFRA) or the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA). 

For more information regarding leave under this policy, contact Human Relations. 
 
 
OTHER REFERENCES:  

 State of California Healthy Workplaces/Healthy Families Act of 2014 
 
 
Approval Date 
Board of Directors  
 
Responsibility for review and maintenance: CHRO 
Developed: 06/25/2015 
Revised: 
Reviewed: 


